
 
 

 
i 

 
Cambridge City Council 

Notice of Council 
 

Date:  Thursday, 27 May 2021 

Time:  11.00 am 

Venue:  Corn Exchange 

Contact:  democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk, tel:01223 457000 
 
Dear Councillor,  
 
A meeting of Cambridge City Council will be held in the Corn Exchange on 
Thursday, 27 May 2021 at 11.00 am and I hereby summon you to attend. 
 
Dated 19 May 2021 
 

Yours faithfully 
 

Robert Pollock 
 

Chief Executive 
 
 
 
 
Agenda 
 

1    To elect a Mayor for the Municipal Year 2021/22  

2    To elect a Deputy Mayor for the Municipal Year 
2021/22  

3    To approve as a correct record the minutes of the 
meeting held on 25 February and 1 March 2021 (Pages 7 - 50) 

4    To note the Returning Officer's Report that the 
following have been elected to the office of 
Councillor (Pages 51 - 52) 

5    Mayor's announcements  

6    To elect from among the Members of the Council 
four bailiffs of the City for the Municipal Year 
2021/22  

Public Document Pack



 

 
ii 

7    To consider the recommendations of the Executive 
for adoption  

7a    Council Appointments to the Conservators of the 
River Cam (Executive Councillor for Open Spaces, 
Sustainable Food and Community Wellbeing)   

8    To elect a Leader  

 The Council is required to appoint a Leader. Article 7.3 of the 
Constitution states: 
 
The Leader will be a councillor elected to the position by the Council 
and will remain as Leader until the day of the Annual Meeting of the 
Council in the year their term of office ends or until: 
 

1. death or disqualification; or 
2. resignation from the office; or 
3. removal from office by resolution of the Council. 

9    To consider the recommendations of Committees for 
adoption  

9a    Civic Affairs: Nominations for Committees for the 
Municipal Year 2021/22  (Pages 53 - 56) 

9b    Civic Affairs: Nominations for Chairs and Vice-Chairs 
Municipal 2021/22  (Pages 57 - 58) 

10    Annual Statements  

 Group Leaders will each have the opportunity to speak for not more 
than 5 minutes on their Group’s priorities for action and objectives for 
the forthcoming municipal year in the following order: 
 
Councillor Herbert 
Councillor Bick 
Councillor Bennett 

11    Public questions time  

 Public questions must be submitted by email and received by midday, 
Monday 24 May and will receive an oral reply from the relevant 
Councillor.    

12    To deal with oral questions from Councillors  

13    To consider the following notices of motion, notice of 
which has been given by:  

13a    Councillor Copley: Support the Climate and  



 

 
iii 

Ecological Emergency Bill  

 
Humans have already caused irreversible climate change, the impacts 
of which are being felt in the UK and around the world. Global 
temperatures have increased by 1 degree Celsius from pre-industrial 
levels. Atmospheric CO2 levels are above 400 parts per million (ppm) 
and continue to rise. This far exceeds the 350 ppm deemed to be a 
safe level for humanity. 

Without more significant and sustained action, the world is set to 
exceed the Paris Agreement’s 1.5°C limit between 2030 and 2040.  

The increase in harm caused by a rise of 2°C rather than 1.5°C is 
significant. This is described by the Intergovernmental Panel on 
Climate Change’s Special Report on Global Warming of 1.5°C 
published in October 2018. According to the IPCC, limiting heating to 
1.5°C may still be possible with ambitious action from national and 
sub-national authorities, civil society, the private sector and local 
communities. The costs of failing to address this crisis will far outstrip 
the investments required to prevent it.  

According to the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Independent 
Commission on Climate Change, our area is at high risk from the 
effects of climate change and face a future of flooding, heatwaves and 
water shortages, and our region has such high emissions we will have 
“exhausted all of our ‘allowed’ share of emissions to 2050” in just six 
years unless drastic action is taken now. Investing now will bring 
many benefits in the form of good jobs, breathable cities and thriving 
communities.  

Council states that: 

(i) All governments (national, regional and local) have a duty to do 
everything in their power to minimise and prevent Climate and 
Ecological breakdown. In keeping with this, the council has 
declared a climate emergency in February 2019 and a 
biodiversity emergency in May 2019.  

 
(ii) The council has set out a strategy for the council to reach net 

zero from it’s direct emissions by 2030 which represent 1.1% of 
carbon emissions in Cambridge, and in declaring a Climate 
Emergency in February 2019 called on government to make the 
investment and changes needed for Cambridge and the UK to 
reach net zero carbon. 



 

 
iv 

 
(iii) There is a Bill before Parliament—the Climate and Ecological 

Emergency Bill (published as the “Climate and Ecology Bill”) 
which deserves the support of the Government, as it 
reassesses the urgency of the twin climate and ecological 
emergencies. According to the Climate and Ecological 
Emergency Bill the Government must develop an emergency 
strategy that: 
(a) requires that the UK plays its fair and proper role in 

reducing greenhouse gas emissions consistent with 
limiting global temperature increase to 1.5 degrees C 
above pre-industrial temperatures; 

(b) ensures that all the UK’s consumption emissions are 
accounted for; 

(c) includes emissions from aviation and shipping; 
(d) protects and restores biodiverse habitats along overseas 

supply chains; 
(e) restores and regenerates the UK’s depleted soils, wildlife 

habitats and species populations to healthy and robust 
states, maximising their capacity to absorb CO2 and their 
resistance to climate heating; 

(f) sets up an independent Citizens’ Assembly, representative 
of the UK’s population, to engage with Parliament and 
Government and help develop the emergency strategy. 

 
Council therefore resolves to: 

(i) Register our support the Climate and Ecological Emergency Bill  
(ii) Inform the local media of this decision; 
(iii) Write to our local MPs (Cambridge and South Cambridgeshire), 

urging them to support the Bill; and 
(iv) Write to the CEE Bill Alliance, the organisers of the campaign for 

the Bill, expressing its support (campaign@ceebill.uk). 

13b    Councillor Herbert: Area Committees / Changes to 
Decision Making   

 To agree that Area Committees continue to be run virtually up to 31 
December 2021 initially, with a review by Civic Affairs Committee in 
the autumn on a more permanent change and to request that the 
Monitoring Officer make the necessary immediate amendments to the 
Council’s Constitution to give affect to this change. 

14    Written questions  

 No discussion will take place on this item. Members will be asked to 
note the written questions and answers document as circulated 

http://www.ceebill.uk/


 

 
v 

around the Chamber. 
  

15    Officer Urgent Decision  

15a    Officer Urgent Decision: Non-Councillor appointment 
to Conservators of the River Cam  (Pages 59 - 60) 

 



 

 
vi 

 
 

Information for the public 

The meeting will be live streamed on the Council’s You Tube channel.  

There will be a limited number of spaces for the public to attend. This is to 
ensure there is a Covid safe environment for everyone in the meeting. If you 
wish to attend in person, please contact 
democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk no later than 12 noon onTuesday 25 
May. 

 Website: http://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk  

 Email: democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk 

 Phone: 01223 457000 

 

mailto:democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk
http://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/
mailto:democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk


Council Cnl/1 Thursday, 25 February 2021 

 

 
 
 

1 

COUNCIL 25 February 2021 
 6.00  - 11.46 pm 
 
Present:  Councillors Ashton, Baigent, Barnett, Bick, Bird, Chadwick, Collis, 
Dalzell, Davies, Davey, Dryden, Gehring, Green, Hadley, Herbert, Hipkin, 
Johnson, Martinelli, Massey, Matthews, McGerty, McPherson, McQueen, 
Moore, O'Reilly, Page-Croft, Payne, Porrer, Robertson, Sargeant, Sheil, 
Smart, Smith, Summerbell, Thittala, Thornburrow, Todd-Jones and Tunnacliffe 
 

FOR THE INFORMATION OF THE COUNCIL 

21/1/CNL Minutes 
 
The minutes of the meetings held on the 22 October and 17 December 2020 
were confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Mayor. 

21/2/CNL Mayor's announcements 
 

Name Item Interest 

Councillor Baigent  Personal: Member of 

Cambridge Cycling 

Campaign. 

Councillor 

Thornburrow 

21/4/CNL Personal: Involved in a group 

called CamDEAG who were 

presenting a public question. 

Councillor Davey 21/9/cnclc Personal: Was a member of 

the Board of Trustees of 

Centre 33, who ran work for 

Young Carers for County 

Council and was involved in 

the tender of the organisation 

for the County Council 

contract. 

Councillor Johnson 21/9/cnclb Personal: Member of GMB 

union. 

Councillor Smith  21/9/cnclb Personal: Member of 

Camcycle and Unison. 

Councillor Sheil  21/9/cnclb Personal: Member of Unison. 

Public Document Pack

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



Council Cnl/2 Thursday, 25 February 2021 

 

 
 
 

2 

Councillor Porrer 21/9/cnclb Personal: Member of Unison. 

Councillor Moore 21/9/cnclb Personal: Member of GMB 

union. 

 
The Mayor welcomed the Council’s new Chief Executive Robert Pollock who 
would be joining the Council in April 2021. 

21/3/CNL Petition 

3a Phone mast on Jesus Green 
A petition had been received containing over 500 signatures stating the 
following: 
 
We call on Cambridge City Council to prevent a 30 metre high phone mast 
from being erected on Jesus Green. 
 
The Petition Organiser made the following points: 
 

i. Speaking on behalf of Jesus Green Association and citizens of 
Cambridge. 2100 people had signed petition against location of mast 
on Jesus Green. 

ii. Would speak to 3 areas; priorities, time frame and location.  
iii. An early mistake was made by not including provision for the mast in 

the initial project          plan for the apart hotel and Park Street Car Park 
redevelopment. 

iv.The current proposal to site the mast on Jess Green, was not a 
solution and must be reconsidered. It was necessary to put right what 
was a mistake in the first place. 

v. Questioned the council’s priorities; were they working for the people or 
were they a developer. Stated that it was unconscionable that the 
council appeared to be acting as a commercial entity, not a council for  
the people. The proposal should not even be considered. 

vi.This was a problem for both the council and the mast providers. They 
needed to solve this issue together. The Council should not blame the 
mast company.  

vii. The Council stated that they were opposed to the mast being cited on 
Jesus Green but no action was being taken to prevent this. 

viii. The Council were claiming an emergency in order to place the mast on 
the park, however, the mast was functioning; there was no emergency. 
The argument was flawed.  

ix. The Council was in a lucky position as the car park contract had not 
been awarded, therefore there was no agreed schedule. The Council 

Page 8



Council Cnl/3 Thursday, 25 February 2021 

 

 
 
 

3 

could therefore dictate the start date for demolition which dictated the 
need for the mast to be removed. 

x. It would show a total lack of accountability for the council to accept a 
contract which forced the removal of the mast, before a permanent 
location is found. 

xi. It was within the Council’s power to sort this out by ensuring there was 
time for this issue to be resolved. 

xii. It was an incorrect assumption that the mast needed to be moved in 
June this year. It was within the Council’s power to delay the mast 
removal until next year. 

xiii. Questioned why the mast should be located on Jesus Green when 
there were other locations to site it and the public and the mast 
operator did not want the mast on Jesus Green. 

xiv. It was insulting to state that the mast would only take up 0.1% of a total 
of 11.3ha. This missed the point that you would not let someone locate 
something that was ugly because it only took up a small amount of 
space.  

xv. The public would like to see what sites were being and had been 
considered. Asked the Council to involve the public to help make 
suggestions and help constructively towards a solution.  

xvi. The issue had been clumsily managed. The strength of public feeling 
was demonstrated by the number of people who had signed the 
petition.  

xvii. Asked the Council to take advantage of the year available and 
find a permanent location for the mast. Asked that the mast was not 
located on Jesus Green. 

 
Councillors debated the issues raised for the allocated 15 minutes. 
 
The Executive Councillor for Planning Policy and Open Spaces made the 
following comments in response to the debate: 

i. Thanked the Petitioner for bringing the petition. 
ii. Expressed concerns that a mast could be located on Jesus Green even 

for a temporary basis.  
iii. There was no planning application for the mast. 
iv. The Council had been informed of an emergency notice to erect a mast, 

this was outside the normal planning process. 
v. It was not for the council to determine alternative sites for the location of 

communication systems. The Council had given due notice and it was for 
the telecoms company to find a new location. 

vi. The situation had changed since the submission of a petition. Park Street 
car park would be demolished in the autumn. This would be replaced 

Page 9



Council Cnl/4 Thursday, 25 February 2021 

 

 
 
 

4 

with a new car park and an aparthotel. This was part of  plan to provide 
income to support the level of services in the city.  As a result the mast 
needs to be removed. The owners had made a prior notice application to 
site the mast on a nearby building which was refused due to the harm on 
the conservation area.  

vii. On December 8 an emergency temporary notice was lodged for a mast 
on Jesus Green. A petition regarding the mast was submitted to the 
Council.  

viii. No council can prevent a mast being erected on common land if the 
conditions set out in the national legislation mean a temporary mast is 
necessary. This applied to the City Council.  

ix. They did not want the mast and had been working with the Telecoms 
Company so that the Telecoms Company could make alternative 
provision for their services.  

x. Whilst did not want to see a mast on Jesus Green also did not want 
people cut off from the telephone network.   

xi. Applicants had amended their plan and had submitted a new application 
24 February 2021. Hoped that the application would be determined 
within 8 weeks and before dismantling the Park Street equipment so that 
there would be no need for a mast on Jesus Green. 

21/4/CNL Public questions time 
 
Members of the public asked a number of questions, as set out below: 
 
First public question  

i.Was a Romanian citizen and recently naturalised British citizen living in 
Cambridge. Worked with the largest EU migrants' rights organisation in 
the UK.  

ii. Noted that 1 in 5 of residents in Cambridge are EU citizens. Non-British 
EU citizens only had until 30 June 2021 to apply to the EU Settlement 
Scheme and receive either pre-settled status (limited leave to remain in 
the UK for 5 years) or settled status (indefinite leave to remain in the 
UK). There is no accurate estimate of the EU migrant population.  

iii. The pandemic has also meant that many of the organisations who have 
supported EU nationals at risk, such as the homeless, or those with 
limited digital or English language skills, for instance, are limited in 
capacity and the type of outreach they can do. The consequences of not 
applying cannot be clearer from a legal point of view: those EU citizens 
who do not make a successful application by 30 June 2021 will become 
unlawfully resident in the UK and therefore can lose their jobs, rented 
properties and access to services.  

Page 10



Council Cnl/5 Thursday, 25 February 2021 

 

 
 
 

5 

iv.On a positive note, the UK Government has confirmed that EU citizens 
will still have the right to vote in the upcoming 2021 local elections. 

v. Asked if the Council saw the 2021 local elections as both an opportunity 
to inform EU citizens in Cambridge that they can vote, how to register to 
vote, including by post, as well as remind them of the EU Settlement 
Scheme application deadline? If yes, what practical steps are being 
taken to reach out to EU citizen communities, in particular those at risk of 
marginalisation in particular the homeless and those with limited digital 
skills and also to British residents who will be the employers and 
landlords who will need to be familiar with how EU citizens will have to 
prove their status after 30 June 2021. 

 
Councillor Davies responded: 

i. The Council had been united in their message of support of EU citizens 

living in the city.  

ii. The Council had been communicating with residents about the EU 

Settlement Scheme for at least 18 months.   

iii. Information about the scheme and local help available was on the 

Council’s website. A letter was sent to all identifiable non-UK EU electors 

on the electoral register last year and included an information leaflet with 

all Council Tax bills.  Information had been included in each edition of the 

residents’ magazine, Cambridge Matters (and in the tenants’ magazine, 

Open Door) in that time.  Cambridge Matters and the leaflet 

accompanying council tax bills went to every household in Cambridge 

reaching British residents who may be employers or landlords as well as 

residents who may not be digitally included. 

iv. The City Council had worked with a number of rough sleepers to gain 

settled status.  Officers had set up and hosted  informal groups of 

community organisations and partners working on the scheme, to co-

ordinate approaches and had made the councils translation contract 

available to help boost accessibility.    

v. In March a new leaflet was due to be sent to all Council Tax bill payers, 

containing information on the EUSS; support and advice available to 

residents wishing to apply; pre-settled status; and (on behalf of the 

Returning Officer) voting in May’s local elections.  The leaflet advised 

potential electors to ensure they are registered to vote, and how to apply 

for a postal or proxy vote. This would go to all households.  

Page 11



Council Cnl/6 Thursday, 25 February 2021 

 

 
 
 

6 

vi. As with other registered electors, EU citizens who are registered to vote 

will receive a poll card at the beginning of April. EU voting rights were 

covered on the council’s website and were also in some of the social 

media messages and press releases that will be issued between now 

and May 6th.   

vii. They remained deeply concerned because of the impact of the pandemic 

on support and advice services that some eligible residents at risk may 

not be aware or able to apply in time for the 30 June 2021 deadline. Was 

also concerned about the lack of physical proof of status for those who 

do get settled status. Both of these factors would hit the most vulnerable 

people the hardest.  

viii. Councillor Herbert agreed to write as Leader of the Council to the 

Government calling for an urgent extension of the 30 June deadline and 

for physical proof of status to be offered. 

 
The member of the public made the following supplementary points: 

i. Thanked Councillor Davies for their response and commented that they 
hoped the Council’s response would be replicated by other Council’s 
across the UK. 

ii. Asked about the organisations who were funded locally who offered 
support to EU nationals. Was aware of a few grants being given by the 
Council to different organisations to provide digital support as well as 
immigration advice. 

iii. Asked if after the June deadline, whether any of those organisations 
would still be supported in Cambridge. Especially with regards to 
immigration advice to offer services to EU nationals in particular those at 
risk for example rough sleepers or those who did not have access to 
digital skills they needed to apply for the status and prove their status. 

iv. Thanked the Leader for writing to the Government to request an 
extension to the June 2021 deadline. 

 
Councillor Davies provided the following supplementary response following the 
meeting: 
i. Thank you for your further question regarding support for residents 

seeking to apply for the EU Settlement Scheme.  The City Council 
doesn’t fund any organisations in the city specifically to help residents 
with the EUSS – Cambridge Online and Cambridge Ethnic Community 
Forum are funded by the Government “We Are Digital” campaign to help 
residents with online applications.   

Page 12



Council Cnl/7 Thursday, 25 February 2021 

 

 
 
 

7 

ii. However, the City Council does fund both those organisations and 
Cambridge Citizens Advice Bureau through our community grants 
programme.  This funds those bodies to support vulnerable residents 
throughout the year, so while it isn’t explicitly for their work on the EUSS 
(there are other wider outcomes we fund them to deliver), yes that 
general funding support will continue beyond 30th June. 

 
Second public question:  

i. Asked if the Council would work with CamDEAG (Cambridge Doughnut 

Economics Action Group) to examine, with a 30th June 2021 decision 

point, building the City Portrait database that could be shared with all 

organisations in the city to devise strategies and guide initiatives to meet 

these pressing needs.  

ii. CamDEAG are an organisation of over 50 voluntary members who live or 

work in Cambridge. The group was set up last year by people who are 

passionate about the care of the environment and social justice. 

iii. The Covid crisis highlighted three significant weaknesses of our society’s 

existing approach. The first being the fragility of the economic system. 

The second being social inequality. The third being the effects of over-

exploitation of land and resources with destruction of the environment 

and loss of biodiversity and the climate crisis. 

iv. Doughnut economics was a term referred in a book called Doughnut 

Economics by Kate Raworth, an Oxford economist. The book included 

ways to meet the needs of all people within the means of a planet; an 

economy fit for the 21st century. 

v. The term City Portrait envisaged a world that operated within the Earth’s 

capacity, protecting the natural environment and meeting the social and 

economic needs of all people. 

vi. Would like to start by co-creating a City Portrait that revealed the extent 

to which this vision had been realised or not. 

vii. The doughnut, a ring shape was used as a striking visual representation 

for this Portrait. The outer ring represents the ecological ceiling and the 

inner one, the social foundation. 

viii. The ecological ceiling showed 9 planetary boundaries as defined by 

earth scientists, such as air pollution, carbon emissions, waste 

generation etc.  

ix. The social foundation was based on the UN Sustainable Development 

Goals (SDGs) which included 16 domains such as access to housing, 

Page 13



Council Cnl/8 Thursday, 25 February 2021 

 

 
 
 

8 

nutritious food, income and jobs; as well as social equity, political voice 

and equality in diversity and others. 

x. The City Portrait would provide an accessible, interactive, visual image 

on a digital platform, which would demonstrate the extent to which the 

ecological ceiling was breached and the extent of any shortfall below the 

social foundation. 

xi. CamDEAG wanted to help co-create a City Portrait for Cambridge City, 

working with the Council, residents, local organisations and businesses. 

 

The Executive Councillor for Finance and Resources responded: 

i. Welcomed the question and noted Doughnut economics was an 
interesting concept. Recovery had to be judged in the context of the 
pandemic which had changed how we live, and how we saw the city and 
communities. More people had faced uncertainty, unemployment and 
economic hardship, and inequality in the city had been exacerbated.   

ii. The Council with its community partners had worked hard to ensure 
those in need were supported. Worked to support businesses and 
employers through several phases of economic disruption. 

iii. Would continue to work with residents and community groups, in the 
business community across partners to build a strong green and 
inclusive recovery.  

iv. Accepted the model of doughnut economics supported by CamDEAG for 
a way to protect the most vulnerable in society whilst at the same time 
staying within the environmental limits, sustainability and tackling the 
climate emergency.  

v. CamDEAG was part of that process. Noted the support of Councillor 
Thornburrow especially around the City Portrait which would be an 
impressive addition to the data the Council held.  

vi. The Council would continue to work with CamDEAG and others to 
ensure that the plan for economic recovery addressed both economic 
inequality and environmental limits that doughnut economics 
recognised.  To do this in a thorough and inclusive way would require 
sufficient time and officer capacity as we transitioned from responding to 
the public health emergency towards a more sustained recovery phase, 
over the coming months. 

vii. Would be keen to report back to the relevant committee by the Autumn if 
possible. Committed to working with CamDEAG on the City Portrait.  

 
The member of the public made the following supplementary point: 
i. Appreciated and noted the response given by the Executive Councillors 

and their support for the scheme.  

Page 14



Council Cnl/9 Thursday, 25 February 2021 

 

 
 
 

9 

 
Third public question: 
i. The Covid-19 pandemic had shown just how important 

telecommunications was. At the same time the 2015 legislation had given 
telecoms companies immense powers to place their equipment almost 
wherever they wanted.  Asked how the need for connectivity could be 
balanced with the wider concerns of the community? Asked how the 
Council proposed to work with the telecoms companies to help reach the 
best outcome. 

 
The Executive Councillor for Planning Policy and Open Spaces responded: 
ii. Until 2015 the Council had significant powers it could use to balance 

these competing interests. A proposal for an electrical sub station on 
Jesus Green was rejected. The Coalition Government decided that the 
interests of the utility companies were more important than anyone else’s 
and made it a lot harder for councils to refuse applications. 

iii. While operating within the current framework, the Council had been 
successful in refusing some of the prior approval applications for telecoms 
masts. The Council had rejected 7 prior application approvals around 
Cambridge in a recent batch. An appeal was lodged against one of these 
rejections but because the Planning Team had prepared the case well the 
appeal was dismissed. It was harder to overturn an emergency 
application. The Council was helping Telecoms companies as much as 
they could to make plans for the future development in appropriate 
locations.  

iv. Had continued to discuss this with officers and representatives of the 
companies themselves.  

 
The member of the public asked the following supplementary point: 
i. Asked if the telecoms mast was ultimately located on Jesus Green, 

despite a petition with over 300 signatures asking EE to locate it 
elsewhere, what goodwill gesture or mitigation money EE could be asked 
to contribute to improve the space and compensate local residents for the 
loss of their tennis court.  

 
Fourth public question: 

iii. Noted the words of the Mayors Chaplain and that everyone wanted the 
best for communities. 

iv. Was the Chair of Mill Road Traders Association. 
v. Had a shop which was affected by the Mill Road closure. 
vi. Noted there were a range of views on the City Council whether the Mill 

Road bus gate restriction should remain in place, and that some councillors 

Page 15



Council Cnl/10 Thursday, 25 February 2021 

 

 
 
 

10 

felt very strongly that the road should remain closed. Would agree to 
disagree on that issue. Hoped it could be agreed that all local authorities 
should act within the confines of the law and take decisions in a 
procedurally fair manner. 

vii. Believed the County Council failed to follow the proper decision-making 
procedures when it implemented the Mill Road bus gate in June of last 
year. In addition to failing to publish required statutory notifications, the 
County Council also failed to take into account the impacts of its decision 
on groups with protected characteristics, in particular individuals with 
disabilities, impacts that the County Council was legally obliged to consider 
under the Equality Act 2010. 

viii. Had criticised the County Council for their unlawful and unfair closure of 
Mill Road. Noted that Cambridge Labour had been silent on this issue. 

ix. Asked the County Council to reconsider the decision in accordance with the 
law and taking into account the impacts of the closure on those with 
disabilities. 

x. Asked if the executive leadership of the City Council would join with the 
traders of Mill Road and challenge the County Council on its unlawful and 
unfair decision making practices and urge the County Council to reconsider 
the Mill Road closure in a manner which took account of the needs of the 
entire community. 

 
The Executive Councillor for Transport and Community Safety responded: 
i. Stated that it was disappointing to hear that the decision-making process 

wasn’t carried out in the correct manner. Agreed the result of the 
consultation wasn’t done in best practice. Noted the concerns of the Mill 
Road traders that repeated numbers of people responding to the 
consultation would affect the consultation result and they were correct.   

ii. Noted that this was a matter for the County Council.  The County Council 
would be looking at the written responses. Asked the traders to talk to the 
Labour County Council group.  

 
The member of the public made the following supplementary point: 
i. Had spoken with Labour County Councillors but had not received a 

satisfactory response. Surveys had been carried out by Mill Road Traders 
Association or other groups. Wanted to understand what the purpose of the 
closure was. Asked if it was to do with social distancing. If so asked when 
lockdown eased whether this meant the road would reopen.    

ii. Traders on Mill Road were not happy. Asked the City Council to help as 
they did not know what else they could do. Most of the residents were 
unhappy too.  

 

Page 16



Council Cnl/11 Thursday, 25 February 2021 

 

 
 
 

11 

Fifth public question: 
i. Chair of Federation of Cambridge Residents Association 
ii. The Government had pledged to make the Oxford Cambridge Arc the 

premier growth corridor.   
iii. On the key issue of water supply, the spatial framework would “support an 

integrated water management approach’ 
iv. It was recognised that the Cam’s grazed meadows played a vital role in 

addressing climate change, floodplain management and local food supply 
and that they should be the backbone of a Cam landscape strategy.  

v. The Council was the official sponsor of plastic cows on Cambridge 
common and proposed to cut the out of hours emergency service for the 
graziers. The budget report stated this had no impact on climate change. 
By cutting the pinder service (saving only £8,000) this threatened the 
livelihoods of small producers that played a vital role in flood plain 
management and climate change, nature farming and in local food supply. 

vi. The graziers stated that they were not consulted about these plans. Asked 
who was consulted. Asked that the out of hours services for the graziers 
was retained.  

vii. The budget proposed £710,000 growth funding for the Wider Cambridge 
Visitor Project to encourage even more people to come to an already very 
crowded city. 

viii. Asked how residents and local businesses could be involved in key 
decisions about climate change and biodiversity if landscapes are 
prioritised for investment because they will generate the council income as 
visitor destinations or were mitigating development? 

ix.  The new joint Local Plan provided an exceptional opportunity to consider 
the Cam as it flows through South Cambs and the city. 

x. Asked if the Council would commit to a River Cam Landscape Strategy that 
prioritised the natural environment and was based on community 
involvement not developer profit or generating income for the Council from 
accelerator parks and visitor destination. 

 
The Executive Councillor for Planning Policy and Open Spaces responded: 
i. Having cows on the common was always the Council’s intention. How this 

was managed was open for discussion. The safety of the cows and 
residents was a priority.  

ii. The Council consulted with all graziers about the service covered by the 
Pinder in relation to the spaces used by the cows. Had written responses 
from almost all the graziers. It was agreed that the Council would look at 
the out of hours service and how to contact the right person or organisation 
if something arose. 

Page 17



Council Cnl/12 Thursday, 25 February 2021 

 

 
 
 

12 

iii. Wanted to review and make sure all the right communications were put in 
place to deal with anything which might arise. 

iv. The Pinder would always respond if necessary and at no additional cost to 
graziers. It was with the agreement of the graziers that the council 
proceeded with the proposal.  The Team had been in contact with graziers 
again recently and learned more about their thoughts. They had also 
spoken with some residents.  

v. Over last year, there had been an increase in the number of people using 
the park and a large increase in the number of dogs too. Dogs which were 
not controlled could cause stress to cows and dog poo could carry 
diseases which harmed cattle too. 

vi. Would accept the Liberal Democrat amendment. 
vii. Wanted dog control to be addressed and wanted to ensure the right 

communication methods were working properly.   
 
The member of the public made the following supplementary point: 
i. The graziers did not know about the cancellation to the service.  They did 

not know that they would get less service for their fee. Questioned who was 
informed about the proposal.  

ii. Had had several communications from graziers that they had not been 
consulted on this matter. 

iii. Wanted to ensure cows could remain on the common which meant 
retaining the out of hours service. 

 
Sixth public question: 
i. Cambridge Green Party welcomed the initiatives announced by the Council 

following the declaration of a Climate Emergency and Biodiversity 
Emergency in 2019. Hoped the Council would agree that this was the most 
important issue confronting us now.  This week the Head of the 
Environment Agency told a meeting of British Insurers that the effects of 
climate change are already hitting levels of ‘reasonable worst case 
scenarios’ and that “... our thinking needs to change faster than the climate. 
And ... our response needs to match the scale of the challenge.” 

ii. Would like to know a) how much the Council intends to spend in total in the 
coming financial year, for the second priority they identify which is "Leading 
and co-ordinating the Cambridge response to the climate change 
emergency and biodiversity crisis", taking into consideration all sections of 
the budget, and b) how much this represented for each resident in 
Cambridge.  

 
The Executive Councillor for Climate Change, Environment and City Centre 
responded: 

Page 18



Council Cnl/13 Thursday, 25 February 2021 

 

 
 
 

13 

i. The Budget Setting Report contained ten proposals to help further the 
Council’s efforts to combat the climate and ecological emergency over 
the coming year.  These had a total value in 2021/22 of £1,697,600. 

ii. The latest ONS mid-year estimate for Cambridge’s population was 
124,792. 

iii. This provided a figure for additional spend in 2021/22 of £13.60 per 
person. 

iv. The Budget Setting Report set out proposals for changes to the existing 
budget it did not include all the on-going work that the Council was 
involved with, projects agreed in previous budgets or officer time.  The 
budget for sustainability activity in 2020/21 was recently calculated (in 
response to a Freedom of Information request) as being in excess of 
£3million.  This included some one-off capital spend (including nearly 
£1.9m for energy efficiency measures in council homes) but did not 
capture all of the spend on staff time across the council. 

v. The Council also bid for Government funding when it was available, and 
this could provide significant additional resources to spend on tackling 
climate change in Cambridge and to help achieve the net zero carbon 
target. 

vi. It was difficult to accurately calculate how much officer time was spent on 
climate change work because it was now embedded at the heart of the 
Council. 

 
The member of the public asked the following supplementary point: 

i. Noted £1.7 million additional and £3 million existing budget spent plus 
additional unquantifiable officer time. 

ii. Brighton and Hove City Council (led by the Green Party) was proposing 
to spend £27 million on climate mitigation measures with an additional £4 
million in reserves. Not including the reserves this equated to a cost of 
£96 per person. Compared this to the figure that Cambridge City Council 
was spending per person of £13.60. 

iii. Asked if the Council thought the amount they were spending was enough 
in view of the existential threat facing the planet. 

 
Seventh public question: 

i. People were more aware of the health and environmental benefits of 
fresh produce and buying local. 

ii. Would the proposed changes to the market affect the structure and 
restrict the number of the stalls where Cambridge residents have been 
buying fresh fruit, vegetables, fish, meat, bread, coffee, tea, herbs, 
olives, flowers on a daily basis for many years. 

Page 19



Council Cnl/14 Thursday, 25 February 2021 

 

 
 
 

14 

iii. Asked if the bicycle menders, second-hand book sellers, clothes and 
craft sellers would be unable to access pitches or be priced out by a 
change in license, space availability or fees. 

iv. Noted that increase in rents and rates in the historic centre had resulted 
in Cambridge having one of the highest proportion of chain-shops per 
capita. Noted that for residents the Market Square represented the last 
beacon of individuality and local tradition in the city.  

v. Had cycled in Holland, France and Germany passing through very many 
market town squares that have traded unchanged for generations. 

 
Eighth public question: 
i. Was a friend of Cambridge Market. The question was in relation to item 

6a, and to issues of project management, democratic involvement, and 
financial prudence with regard to budget bid CAP 4787 on BSR page 
101.  

ii. A successful project depended on getting the brief right. For the key 
public realm site, public involvement was essential, from the start to 
frame the brief. But the RIBA Plan of Work, used by the Council for the 
Market Square, did not include public consultation at the briefing stage. 
The “project stakeholders” identified by officers did not include market 
shoppers, residents, or the wider public of Cambridge. 

iii. There had been no public consultation on the vision, the brief, or the 
published feasibility study.  The Council’s Market Square page stated 
that “We are not inviting comments on any aspect of the project at this 
stage”.  Noted that £158,000 of City Council money had already been 
spent on this project, without any public mandate. 

iv. The Market Square was the centre of the city and was a matter of 
concern for residents of all city wards.  

v. Asked members if they would commit to a full public consultation on a 
vision and brief for the market square, and on feasibility studies to test 
whether this vision is viable on the site, before consulting on a concept 
design?.   

vi. The bid stated “Subject to Committee approval in July 2021”, but the 
output from the November Stakeholder workshops, published just 2 days 
ago, says “the final Vision and Concept Design would be considered by 
Committee on 25 March”.  Queried when the Committee would consider 
this in March, or July. 

vii. Officers published a report titled Vision and Concept Design a month 
ago, but this did not consider the vision or possible alternatives. It was 
only paused because the Quarterbridge report had not been included. 
The draft Concept Design proposed aspirational flexible uses, based on 
totally inadequate analysis of their requirements, viability, and potential 

Page 20



Council Cnl/15 Thursday, 25 February 2021 

 

 
 
 

15 

impacts on existing uses within and around the market.  The just 
published workshop output stated that no detailed market research had 
taken place yet for any events or visiting markets. 

viii. Felt if CAP 4787 was approved, expensive redesigns and re-
consultations would be inevitable as the current Council vision came up 
against practical realities and the voice of the public.  Any allocation 
should instead provide for city-wide public consultation on the vision, the 
brief, and on thorough feasibility studies, before starting on design work. 

ix. Did not want to waste public money. Asked for a response from the 
Executive Councillor for Finance and Resources 

 
Ninth public question:  

i. Spoke as a Friend of Cambridge Market and their question related to the 
Budget Setting Report CAP4787. 

ii. The Council’s plan for turning the market square into a flexible space 
was entirely dependent on replacing the traders tried and tested fixed 
stalls with an experimental scheme of modular interconnected 
dismountable stalls. A scheme which has never been used in any 
outdoor market before.  

iii. A prototype had not been tested or produced. Nothing had been 
provided to the traders so that they could see what the stalls were like for 
setting out and selling their produce. 

iv. Shoppers and traders had said the proposed stalls would not be fit for 
purpose.  

v. The plan proposed a large risk to small businesses who had traded on 
the market for years. The safety of the businesses should be the top 
priority in addition to the shoppers who relied on them. 

vi. The proposed stalls should have been thoroughly tried and tested before 
being proposed as a replacement for the fixed stalls. To proceed without 
testing was irresponsible. 

vii. Referred to the Executive councillor’s comments at the Strategy and 
Resources Scrutiny Committee where she stated the flexible space 
would be used very rarely. Questioned why the Council was proceeding 
with removable stalls at all, and why the Executive Councillor stated that 
the flexible space would be used for civic space only, compared to 
comments which stated that the space could be used for licensed 
commercial events and activities. Asked for clarification what the 
proposed flexible space would be used for as there was contradictory 
information.    

 
Tenth public question: 

Page 21



Council Cnl/16 Thursday, 25 February 2021 

 

 
 
 

16 

i. Original question was based on the acknowledgment received from the 
Committee Manager following requests to speak at the Full Council 
meeting which warned of a constraint on members of the public’s 
speaking rights. The response stated ‘Please note that our public 
speaking scheme provides that the Chair or Executive Councillor may 
refuse to permit a question or a statement if it (or something similar) has 
already been put or made to another meeting of a Council committee or 
other body’.  

ii. Thought the constraint had not been applied but noted that it now 
appeared that the constraint had been applied. 

iii. Spoke as a Friend of Cambridge Market.  
iv. Many questions regarding Cambridge Market had been asked of 

Executive Councillors and other councillors.  
v. Questions which were at the core of objections regarding essential civic 

space and the market square. 
vi. Noted selected questions were beginning to be addressed but a lot of 

questions put to the November 2020 workshop regarding the viability of 
the project were still unanswered. The Council needed to answer these 
publicly.  

vii. The Council demanded those who attended the market workshops 
maintain a level of secrecy which excluded the public from being able to 
give their consideration to a project which would transform a central civic 
space.   

viii. The people excluded included residents around the market square and 
people who shopped at the market.  

ix. At the beginning of the year 7300 people signed a petition for the market 
to be reopened. Felt their voices had been excluded from consideration 
of the proposals.  

x. People of Cambridge valued the market traders who pulled out all the 
stops to provide Cambridge with quality fresh produce and bicycle 
servicing over the first lockdown, whatever the weather and 
circumstances.  

xi. In more normal times the market provided what the residents wanted and 
needed. A flimsy touristy market was not wanted. 

 
Eleventh public question: 

i. Speaking on behalf of Cambridge Market Traders Association. 
ii. Noted the support of previous public speakers who were Friends of 

Cambridge Market.  
iii. Supported the Mill Road Traders. 
iv. The closure of Cambridge Market at the beginning of January 2021 had 

caused upset amongst many traders, lost income for the Council and for 

Page 22



Council Cnl/17 Thursday, 25 February 2021 

 

 
 
 

17 

numerous small local businesses. The current operation of the market 
was the most restrictive of any comparable open air market in the UK, 
according to National Market Traders Federation. All other markets have 
the full range of 'essential' traders operating. In Cambridge, only a subset 
of essential traders were operating, less than 50%. The Covid infection 
rates were around 60% of the national average and Cambridge had 
never been above the national average.  

v. Weekly and sometimes daily meetings had been held since early 
January between Traders and Council Officers to produce well 
developed plans which had not been signed off.  

vi. Under a Freedom of Information disclosure it took a meeting between a 
limited number of people (5 people) and limited data to close the market.  
To open the market, it had taken hundreds of hours from a wide range of 
organisations. The level of Government support for traders amounted to 
less than one week of non-Covid income; traders had fixed costs which 
remained. 

vii. Some low paid people continued on furlough being given 80% of an 
already low wage. Some traders now visited food banks to receive 
support.  

viii. Asked when the Council would make a speedy change to allow all 
essential traders to operate or ask if it would continue the restrictive 
action. 

 
The Mayor clarified that the Executive Councillor would respond to the 
questions which had been asked regarding Cambridge Market, public 
speakers would then get an opportunity to ask their supplementary question 
and this would be responded to by email. 
 
The Executive Councillor for Climate Change, Environment and City Centre 
responded: 

i. The key aims of the market square project were to protect and enhance 
the market heritage and ensure a 7 day a week market was retained. 

ii. Wanted to make the market layout, design and associated facilities 
attractive and accessible for market users and visitors to sustain the 
economic viability of the market.  

iii. The Council through its Market Management Team sought to retain the 
diverse range of stalls on the market. There were no plans to change this 
or disproportionately increase fees. 

iv. Had reoriented the market which brought it back to a previous layout. 
Wanted to restore the fountain so that it would work.  

Page 23



Council Cnl/18 Thursday, 25 February 2021 

 

 
 
 

18 

v. The purpose of the market square project was to ensure the long-term 
future of the market by investment and updating it, for example by adding 
a central area for tables and chairs. 

vi. The first stage of the project was to compete a feasibility project which 
was done in July 2019. The report identified how the market square 
operated and made recommendations which were used to inform the 
concept design stage project. The report was available on the market 
square project webpage. 

vii. The budget proposal to fund the feasibility assessment and concept 
design stages of the project were scrutinised through the Council’s 
Budget Setting process and was approved at Full Council. 

viii. Intended to present the proposed concept design for public consultation 
to the Environment and Community Scrutiny Committee in January 2021, 
but following a legal challenge it would now be brought to the March 
2021 meeting. 

ix. Felt the concept design report set out the project’s vision for the market, 
had produced a proposed supporting position statement which would 
form part of the 25 March consultation concept design committee item.  

x. Engagement with the wider public was not felt to be appropriate or 
meaningful until the Council had a proposed vision and concept design 
to share for comment and feedback. 

xi. The public consultation was originally scheduled to take place in 
February and March 2021, following the deferral of the report it wasn’t 
anticipated this would now take place until after the May election.  

xii. The design would be amended following consultation feedback. It was 
then intended to present the proposals to the 1 October 2021 
Environment and Community Scrutiny Committee.  

xiii. One aim of the project was to create a flexible space which could be 
used for events or activities whilst still accommodating a 7 day a week 
daytime market. 

xiv. The concept design proposed a large area in front of the Guildhall, which 
would be available without the need to remove infrastructure for small 
events and activities during the day and evening.  It would only be for 
large evening events where stalls may need to be moved but only if such 
events are required. 

xv. No detailed market research analysis had taken place yet this would be 
done during RIBA stages 3 and 4. This would be fully explored during a 
consultation.  

xvi. The Council was investigating where the traders could be moved to if the 
market was redeveloped. The traders would be consulted. 

xvii. Planned to continue to run a 7 day a week market in the market square. 

Page 24



Council Cnl/19 Thursday, 25 February 2021 

 

 
 
 

19 

xviii. The consultation would include the Council’s vision which all 
respondents could feed back on. 

xix. The market needed investment and felt the market did not make the 
most of the outdoor area. 

xx. The concept design proposed two design options which would meet 
the needs of traders including increased available trading space and 
weather protection for traders and customers. 

xxi. The demountable feature of the stalls allowed for the space to be 
used flexibly for other events and activities outside of market 
operating hours.   

xxii. Detailed analysis of the two stall design options including trial testing 
and prototypes of each by the traders would be undertaken to 
understand suitability and ensure that they meet the needs of the 
traders.  This would mitigate risk and inform the next detailed design 
stage of the project. 

xxiii. Trial testing would be done in the late spring / summer period.  If the 
trials proved that the designs were not worth pursuing, then 
alternative options including the existing stall designs would be 
assessed as part of the detailed design stage.  

xxiv. The market and market square were at the heart of Cambridge and 
deserved investment.  

xxv. Having more space to run family events would be a welcome outcome 
from the project. Research into holding such events would be 
considered as part of the next detailed planning stage. The 
consultation would explore what kind of events the public might like.  

xxvi. The market square project process was published on the market 
square webpages.   

xxvii. Council officers continued to work closely with the Cambridge and 
Peterborough Public Health Team, Cambridge Market Traders 
Association and the National Market Traders Federation to develop 
safe and secure plans to allow the phased re-opening of the market in 
accordance with Government regulation and guidance. Current phase 
was to enable all eligible hot food and drink traders to be able to 
return safely. Plans were being developed in accordance with the 
Government’s roadmap, informed by a comprehensive and rigorous 
risk assessment which proposes measures to control risks at an 
acceptable level.  

xxviii. Health of traders and the public remained the number one priority. 
xxix. Had committed that the Director of Public Health would sign off the 

market’s opening plans and the plans would be kept under continuous 
review.  

Page 25



Council Cnl/20 Thursday, 25 February 2021 

 

 
 
 

20 

xxx. Hoped to make an announcement next week concerning the hot food 
and drink traders.  

 
Supplementary questions: 

1.  

i. Noted that he had asked for a response from the Executive Councillor for 

Finance and Resources and stated that Councillor Moore had only 

answered one of their points. 

ii. The Executive Councillor hadn’t addressed the issue regarding needing 

to involve wider project stakeholders at the beginning for a key public 

square in the centre of the city.  

iii. If the public weren’t involved, you did not get the brief or the vision which 

would work for everyone.  

iv. It was difficult to get sight of the project brief. 

v. The published Feasibility Study was extremely limited and partial. Noted 

the document described the market as an obstacle to the views of the 

adjacent listed buildings and commented this was not credible. Invited 

Councillors to read the Feasibility Study.  

vi. Looked for a new feasibility study which looked at practicalities.  In the 

concept design, there was a rough diagram which looked at how 

proposed night time uses might fit in with the existing market. Without 

any detailed assessment of the implications on the traders. Any new 

activity in the square would mean that traders would have to stop trading 

12 noon the previous day, they would lose one and half days trading at 

least.  

vii. Noted the report which was due to be taken to the Environment and 

Community Scrutiny Committee on 28 January 2021 was marked only as 

relevant to Market ward. The report should have been marked as 

relevant to all wards.  

 

2.  

i. Noted the vision / material which had been referred to and noted this was 

contained within the design document.  

ii. Queried the reliance on removable stalls and noted there was no 

prototype available until May or later in the year. Felt this was ridiculous 

when so much money had been spent on the project. Noted the 

Page 26



Council Cnl/21 Thursday, 25 February 2021 

 

 
 
 

21 

Executive Councillor stated if the stalls didn’t work then they would go 

back to the fixed stalls. 

iii. People were querying why other cheaper alternatives were not being 

explored.  

iv. Commented that the council was in danger of taking a gamble with this 

development. Noted £158,000 had been spent on a plan which was 

entirely dependent on removable stalls. Stated that for the council to 

invest a further £330,000 on the project may look like throwing good 

money after bad. Felt this money could be spent on improvements that 

the market needed instead of the current project which the public hadn’t 

been consulted on.  

 

3.  

i. Noted that most of their concerns had been raised by previous 

public speakers. 

ii. Expressed concerns that the Executive Councillor had said that the 

public would not be consulted. The people of Cambridge needed to 

be consulted on the vision for the project. The Executive Councillor 

had not made it clear whether all the people of Cambridge would 

be consulted.  It was an important central space in the centre of 

Cambridge for the people of Cambridge.  

 

4.  

i. Noted the comments made by the Executive Councillor. 

ii. Noted that they and some others had been involved in helping form 

some of the plans for the re-opening of the market.  

iii. The closure of the market stopped people from being able to 

purchase items in the open air environment. If they wanted to 

purchase the same goods they’ve had to either go into buildings, 

which is an area regarded where you can get more infection or 

they could go elsewhere. Going elsewhere could involve travel and 

was something else the public should not be doing.  

iv. Noted the list of people who had to sign off the re-opening plans, 

the plans were more or less similar to plans in place in September 

2020.  

v. Traders would welcome the announcement next week but this 

basically meant that the market could trade like any other open air 

Page 27



Council Cnl/22 Thursday, 25 February 2021 

 

 
 
 

22 

market in the UK, which had been trading in the last 8 weeks 

without any such restrictions.  

vi. A lot of people had been involved in getting the market re-opened 

and not many people had been involved in closing the market 

based on limited data.    

 

21/5/CNL To consider the recommendations of the Executive for 
adoption 

5a Executive Councillor for Housing: HRA Budget-Setting Report (BSR) 
2021/22 
 
Resolved (by 26 votes to 0): 
 
i. Approved the need to borrow over the 30-year life of the business plan, 

with the first instance of this anticipated to be in 2022/23, to sustain the 
proposed level of investment, which includes ear-marking of funding for 
delivery of a net 1,000 new homes over a 10 year timeframe. 

ii. Recognised that any decision to borrow further will impact the authority’s 
ability to set-aside resource to redeem 25% of the value of the housing 
debt by the point at which the loan portfolio matures, with the approach 
to this to be reviewed before further borrowing commences. 

iii. Approved the latest Decent Homes Programme, to include updated 
decent homes expenditure for new build dwellings to recognise the 
increased ongoing costs of maintaining homes at Passivhaus standards, 
as detailed in Appendix E of the HRA Budget Setting Report. 

iv. Approved the latest budget sums, profiling and associated financing for 
all new build schemes, including revised scheme budgets for Tedder 
Way, Kendal Way, Clerk Maxwell, Campkin Road, Colville Road and 
Kingsway, based upon the latest cost information from the Cambridge 
Investment Partnership (CIP) or direct procurements, as detailed in 
Appendices E and H, and summarised in Appendix K, of the HRA 
Budget Setting Report. 

v. Approved allocation of funds from the budget ear-marked for the delivery 
of 1,000 net new homes to the five schemes at Fen Road, Ditton Walk, 
Aragon Close, Sackville Close, and Borrowdale in line with the scheme 
specific reports presented to Housing Scrutiny Committee in the 
committee cycle.  

vi. Noted the removal of the budget and associated MHCLG grant income 
for the acquisition of property to accommodate rough sleepers, following 

Page 28



Council Cnl/23 Thursday, 25 February 2021 

 

 
 
 

23 

confirmation that the authority was unsuccessful in the 2020/21 round of 
the Next Steps Grant bid process.  

vii. Approved the revised Housing Capital Investment Plan as shown in 
Appendix K of the HRA Budget Setting Report. 

viii. Approved inclusion of Disabled Facilities Grant expenditure and 
associated grant income from 2021/22 onwards, based upon 2020/21 
original grant levels, with delegation to the Head of Finance, as Section 
151 Officer, to approve an in year increase or decrease in the budget for 
disabled facilities grants in any year, in direct relation to any increase or 
decrease in the capital grant funding for this purpose, as received from 
the County Council through the Better Care Fund. Approved delegation 
to the Head of Finance, as Section 151 Officer, to determine the most 
appropriate use of any additional Disabled Facilities Grant funding 
announced in year, for the wider benefit of the Shared Home 
Improvement Agency.  

ix. Approved delegation to the Strategic Director to review and amend the 
level of fees charged by the Shared Home Improvement Agency for 
disabled facilities grants and repair assistance grants, in line with any 
decisions made by the Shared Home Improvement Agency Board.  

x. Approved delegation to the Strategic Director, in consultation with the 
Head of Finance, as Section 151 Officer, to draw down resource from the 
ear-marked reserve for potential debt redemption or re-investment, for 
the purpose of open market land or property acquisition or new build 
housing development, should the need arise, in order to meet quarterly 
deadlines for the use of retained right to buy receipts or to facilitate future 
site redevelopment.  

xi. Approved delegation to the Head of Finance, as Section 151 Officer, to 
include both expenditure and income budgets in respect of any grant bid 
made to MHCLG as part of the Next Steps Grant Programme, 
recognising that any net impact for the HRA will need to be 
retrospectively incorporated as part of the HRA Medium Term Financial 
Strategy in 2021/22.  

xii. Approved delegation to the Head of Finance, as Section 151 Officer, to 
make the necessary technical amendments to detailed budgets in 
respect of the outcome of the review of recharges between the General 
Fund and the HRA, with any change in impact for the HRA to be 
incorporated as part of the HRA Medium Term Financial Strategy in 
September 2021. 

 

5b Executive Councillor for Finance and Resources: Capital Strategy 
2021/2022 
 

Page 29



Council Cnl/24 Thursday, 25 February 2021 

 

 
 
 

24 

Resolved (by 26 votes to 0): 
 
i. Approved the capital strategy; and 

ii. Noted the summary capital programme. 

5c Executive Councillor for Finance and Resources: Treasury Management 
Strategy Statement Report 2021/22 to 2023/24 
 
Resolved (unanimously): 
 
i. Approved this report including the estimated Prudential & Treasury 

Indicators for 2021/22 to 2024/25 (inclusive) as set out in Appendix C of 
the officer’s report. 

ii. Authorised the increase in the limit for external debt from £400 million to 
£450 million on 1 April 2022, and to £550 million on 1 April 2023, in order 
to provide sufficient headroom for external borrowing to finance the HRA 
new build programme in accordance with the HRA capital plan. 

21/6/CNL To consider Budget Recommendations of the Executive for 
Adoption 

6a Budget Setting Report (General Fund) 2021/22 
 
The Executive presented its budget recommendations as set out in the Council 
Agenda and Information Pack as published on the City Council’s website. 
 

6b Liberal Democrat Group Amendment to the Executive Budget 
Recommendations 

 
The Liberal Democrat Group Members presented the Liberal Democrat 
Group’s alternative budget as set out in the Council Agenda and in the Update 
to Liberal Democrat Group Amendment to Executive Budget 
Recommendations as published on the City Council’s website. 
 
On a show of hands the Liberal Democrat Group’s alternative budget 
amendment was lost by: 
 
12 votes in favour: Councillors Bick, Chadwick, Dalzell, Gehring, Martinelli, 
Matthews, McGerty, Page-Croft, Payne, Porrer, Summerbell and Tunnacliffe.  
 
To 26 votes against: Councillors Ashton, Baigent, Barnett, Bird, Collis, 
Davies, Davey, Dryden, Green, Hadley, Herbert, Hipkin Johnson, Massey, 

Page 30



Council Cnl/25 Thursday, 25 February 2021 

 

 
 
 

25 

McPherson, McQueen, Moore, O’Reilly, Robertson, Sargeant, Sheil, Smart, 
Smith, Thittala, Thornburrow and Todd-Jones 
 
In accordance with the Council’s budget procedure, Councillor Bick moved 
separately the following proposals, which formed part of the Liberal Democrat 
Group alternative budget: 
 

Reference  Details  

S0007 and 
CAP0009 

S0007 - Delete S4743 (Public toilet review 
and policy implementation) [linked with 
CAP0008] 
 
CAP0009 Public Toilet Improvement 
Programme 

 
On a show of hands the proposal was lost by: 
 
12 votes in favour: Councillors Bick, Chadwick, Dalzell, Gehring, Martinelli, 
Matthews, McGerty, Page-Croft, Payne, Porrer, Summerbell and Tunnacliffe.  
 
To 26 votes against: Councillors Ashton, Baigent, Barnett, Bird, Collis, 
Davey, Davies Dryden, Green, Hadley, Herbert, Hipkin Johnson, Massey, 
McPherson, McQueen, Moore, O’Reilly, Robertson, Sargeant, Sheil, Smart, 
Smith, Thittala, Thornburrow and Todd-Jones 
 

Reference  Details  

S0017  Delete S4759 (Pinder – out of hours 
emergency response)  

 
On a show of hands the proposal was carried by: 
 
37 votes in favour: Councillors Ashton, Baigent, Barnett, Bick, Bird, 
Chadwick, Collis, Dalzell, Davey, Davies, Dryden, Gehring, Green, Hadley, 
Herbert, Hipkin Johnson Martinelli, Massey Matthews, McGerty, McPherson, 
McQueen, Moore O’Reilly, Page-Croft, Payne, Porrer, Robertson, Sargeant, 
Sheil, Smart, Smith, Summerbell, Thornburrow, Todd-Jones and Tunnacliffe.  
 

Reference  Details  

Update to 
recommendation 
2.3   

At recommendation 2(e), after “Capital Plan”, 
add “together with the 
changes in Appendix 2 to the Liberal 
Democrat Group 

Page 31



Council Cnl/26 Thursday, 25 February 2021 

 

 
 
 

26 

Amendment to Budget-Setting Report 
(BSR) 2021/22” (updated 
19.2.21) and that options for replacing the 
Corn Exchange heating 
system (CAP4706), including renewable 
energy sources and carbon 
offsetting, should be subject to a prior report 
to the Environment and 
Community Scrutiny Committee (if necessary 
at a special meeting) before a final decision. 

 
On a show of hands the proposal was lost by: 
 
12 votes in favour: Councillors Bick, Chadwick, Dalzell, Gehring, Martinelli, 
Matthews, McGerty, Page-Croft, Payne, Porrer, Summerbell and Tunnacliffe.  
 
To 24 votes against: Councillors Ashton, Baigent, Barnett, Bird, Collis, 
Davey, Davies Dryden, Green, Hadley, Herbert, Johnson, Massey, 
McPherson, McQueen, Moore, O’Reilly, Robertson, Sargeant, Sheil, Smart, 
Smith, Thornburrow and Todd-Jones 
 

Reference  Details  

B0016 Recognition of sustainability excellence in 
new buildings and retrofit of old 

On a show of hands the proposal was lost by: 
 
12 votes in favour: Councillors Bick, Chadwick, Dalzell, Gehring, Martinelli, 
Matthews, McGerty, Page-Croft, Payne, Porrer, Summerbell and Tunnacliffe.  
 
To 24 votes against: Councillors Ashton, Baigent, Barnett, Bird, Collis, 
Davey, Davies Dryden, Green, Hadley, Herbert, Johnson, Massey, 
McPherson, McQueen, Moore, O’Reilly, Robertson, Sargeant, Sheil, Smart, 
Smith, Thornburrow and Todd-Jones 
 
Councillor Smith proposed an amendment to the Update to the Liberal 
Democrat Group Amendment to the Budget Setting Report paragraph 2.3 as 
set out in the Information Pack. 
 
On a show of hands the proposal was carried by: 
 

Page 32



Council Cnl/27 Thursday, 25 February 2021 

 

 
 
 

27 

23 votes in favour: Councillors Ashton, Baigent, Barnett, Bird, Collis, Davey, 
Davies Dryden, Green, Hadley, Herbert, Johnson, Massey, McPherson, 
McQueen, Moore, Robertson, Sargeant, Sheil, Smart, Smith, Thornburrow and 
Todd-Jones 
 
12 abstentions: Councillors Bick, Chadwick, Dalzell, Gehring, Martinelli, 
Matthews, McGerty, Page-Croft, Payne, Porrer, Summerbell and Tunnacliffe.  
 
Unless otherwise stated, all references in the recommendations to sections, 
pages and appendices relate to Version 2.0 (Council) of the Budget Setting 
Report (BSR). 
 
This can be found via:  
 
Agenda for Council on Thursday, 25th February, 2021, 6.00 pm - Cambridge 
Council 
 
It was RESOLVED to agree the Executive’s budget proposals by: 
 
23 votes in favour: Councillors Ashton, Baigent, Barnett, Bird, Collis, Davey, 
Davies Dryden, Green, Hadley, Herbert, Johnson, Massey, McPherson, 
McQueen, Moore, Robertson, Sargeant, Sheil, Smart, Smith, Thornburrow and 
Todd-Jones 
 
12 abstentions: Councillors Bick, Chadwick, Dalzell, Gehring, Martinelli, 
Matthews, McGerty, Page-Croft, Payne, Porrer, Summerbell and Tunnacliffe.  
 
To approve the following:  
 

i. Revenue Pressures and Bids shown in Appendix C(b) and Savings 
shown in Appendix C(c) (except for the removal of saving S4759 
Pinder Service) of the officer’s report. 

ii. Non-Cash Limit items as shown in Appendix C(d) of the officer’s 
report. 

iii. There are no bids to be funded from External or Earmarked Funds 
(which would be included as Appendix C(e) of the officer’s report). 

iv. Delegation to the Chief Financial Officer (Head of Finance) of the 
calculation and determination of the Council Tax taxbase (including 
submission of the National Non-Domestic Rates Forecast Form, 
NNDR1, for each financial year) which is set out in Appendix A(a) 
of the officer’s report. 

Page 33

https://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=116&MId=3781&Ver=4
https://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=116&MId=3781&Ver=4


Council Cnl/28 Thursday, 25 February 2021 

 

 
 
 

28 

v. The level of Council Tax for 2021/22 as set out in Appendix A (b) 
and Section 4 [page 20 of the BSR refers].  

vi. Delegation to the Head of Finance to finalise changes relating to 
any corporate and/or departmental restructuring and any 
reallocation of support service and central costs, in accordance 
with the CIPFA Service Reporting Code of Practice for Local 
Authorities (SeRCOP). 

vii. Any recommendations in respect of the proposals outlined in 
Appendix D(a) of the officer’s report for inclusion in the Capital 
Plan.  As it was already planned to report to future committees on 
the details of the Corn Exchange improvement programme, for the 
benefit of clarity, a report on the heating project will be brought to 
the March meeting of the Environment and Communities Scrutiny 
Committee. This will include details of why the heating proposals 
are, at the present time, both the most viable option, and the least 
harmful solution environmentally. 

viii. The revised Capital Plan for the General Fund as set out in 
Appendix D(c) of the officer’s report and the Funding as set out in 
Section 6, page 29 of the BSR. 

ix. The impact of revenue and capital budget approvals and approve 
the resulting level of reserves to be used to support the budget 
proposals as set out in the table [Section 8, page 49 of the BSR 
refers]. 

x. The updated Corporate Plan 2019 - 2022, attached at Appendix B 
of the officer’s report. 

 
 
 

The meeting ended at 11.46 pm 
 
 
 
 

CHAIR 
 

Page 34



Council Cnl/1 Monday, 1 March 2021 

 

 
 
 

1 

COUNCIL 1 March 2021 
 6.30  - 9.22 pm 
 
Present:  Councillors Baigent, Barnett, Bick, Bird, Chadwick, Collis, Dalzell, 
Davies, Davey, Dryden, Gehring, Green, Hadley, Herbert, Hipkin, Johnson, 
Martinelli, Massey, Matthews, McGerty, McPherson, McQueen, Moore, 
O'Reilly, Page-Croft, Payne, Porrer, Robertson, Sargeant, Smart, Smith, 
Summerbell, Thittala, Thornburrow and Todd-Jones 
 

FOR THE INFORMATION OF THE COUNCIL 

21/7/CNL Apologies 
 
Apologies were received from Councillors Ashton, Sheil and Tunnacliffe and 
Councillor McPherson provided apologies for lateness. 
 
Councillors Page-Croft and Sargeant indicated that they would need to leave 
the meeting part way through. 
 

Councillor Item Interest 

Councillor Davey 21/10/cnclc Personal: Was a member of 

the Board of Trustees of 

Centre 33, who ran work for 

Young Carers for County 

Council and was involved in 

the tender of the organisation 

for the County Council 

contract. 

21/8/CNL To consider the recommendations of Committees for 
adoption 

7a Civic Affairs: Pay Policy Statement 2021/22 
Resolved (unanimously): 
 
i. Approved the draft Pay Policy Statement 2021/22 attached as Appendix 

1 of the Officer’s report. 
ii. Delegated authority to the Head of Human Resources to update the Pay 

Policy Statement 2021/22 should a chief executive and/or chief officer 
and/or NJC pay award be agreed. 

Public Document Pack

Page 35



Council Cnl/2 Monday, 1 March 2021 

 

 
 
 

2 

7b Civic Affairs: Member Allowances - review by the Independent 
Remuneration Panel 
Resolved (unanimously): 
 
i. Approved the 2020/21 allowance scheme (attached to the officer’s 

report) and that it is not index linked for 2021/22 (ie. kept at the rate for 
2020/21). 

7c Licensing Committee: Statement of Licensing Policy 
Resolved (unanimously): 
 
i. Considered the results of the public consultation exercise as summarised 

in Appendix B of the Officer’s report. 
ii. Approved the amended Statement of Licensing Policy attached to the 

Officer’s report as Appendix D. Appendix C included tracked changes 
showing the amendments that have been made. 

7d Licensing Committee: Cumulative Impact Assessment 
Resolved (unanimously): 
 

i. Considered the results of the public consultation exercise as summarised 
in Appendix B of the Officer’s report and the information provided by 
Cambridge Constabulary and Public Health before the public 
consultation as attached to the Officer’s report as Appendix C. 

ii. Approved the proposed Cumulative Impact Assessment attached to the 
Officer’s report as Appendix D. Appendix E is the current section in the 
Statement of Licensing Policy on the cumulative impact of a 
concentration of licensed premises. 

21/9/CNL To deal with oral questions 
 
Question  1 

 
From: Cllr Payne  
To: Ex Cllr for Climate Change,Environment and City Centre 
 
After a Liberal Democrat motion highlighted the dramatic increase in littering 
over the summer months, the Environment and Community Scrutiny 
Committee recently unanimously supported a new litter strategy.  While work 
on this strategy begins, what immediate steps will the Council take to try to 
prevent another inundation of litter as outdoor socialising begins? 
 
The Executive Councillor responded: 

Page 36



Council Cnl/3 Monday, 1 March 2021 

 

 
 
 

3 

Officers had worked tirelessly during the pandemic. The Executive Councillor 
did not agree there was a litter problem in the city in 2020. There was some 
littering in known hot spots and the cleansing team cleared these areas before 
daytime use of the open spaces commenced. Littering was a general issue 
experienced by local authorities across the country during the pandemic. 
Following publication of the Government roadmap out of lockdown, officers 
were meeting to discuss ways forward and what measures needed to be put in 
place in advance of the summer period, including advice, guidance and 
enforcement.  
 
Question  2 
 
From: Cllr Gehring  
To: Leader 
 
Brexit continues to be a greatly unsettling process, especially for EU citizens. 
How is the Council ensuring that EU citizens will excercise their right to vote in 
the upcoming local elections for Council, County, P&C Commissioner and 
Metromayor? 
 
The Executive Councillor responded: 
The Council continued to give its full support to EU citizens. It was a key 
priority to make EU citizens aware that they could and were welcome to vote. 
A leaflet was to be sent out with all council tax bills giving advice regarding the 
EU resettlement scheme and also about registering to vote. The Cambridge 
Matters magazine would be sent to all households in Cambridge and would 
contain articles regarding the EU resettlement scheme and advice regarding 
voting. In May every political position was up for election in Cambridge except 
the MP and it was therefore vital that everyone who was entitled to vote could 
vote. Urged people to apply for a postal vote to ensure that they could exercise 
their democratic right. 
 
Question  3 
 
From: Cllr O'Reilly  
To: Leader 
 
What are the city council’ s priorities so Cambridge recovers strong when 
COVID is beaten? 
 
The Executive Councillor responded: 

Page 37



Council Cnl/4 Monday, 1 March 2021 

 

 
 
 

4 

The well organised vaccination programme in Cambridge was helping but the 
city wasn’t fully protected yet. Noted and agreed that people needed to stick to 
the Covid rules set out in the Government’s roadmap. Recovery needed to be 
based on the virus being controlled. There were four forms of recovery: 
economic, social, environmental and the council itself. Economic and social 
recovery were linked. The city had 2,100 additional people claiming universal 
credit. The Council would be working closely with its partners to get the 
recovery right. The Council would need to improve the way it delivered its 
services with less finance. 
 
Question  4 
 
From: Cllr Bird  
To: Ex Cllr for Communities 
 
What is the council doing to support LGBTQ+ history month? 
 
The Executive Councillor responded: 
LGBTQ+ history month celebrated the lives and achievements of lesbian, gay, 
bisexual and transgender communities. It ensured stories were heard and 
voices were not silenced; their contribution to history had often been ignored. 
The City Council was proud to support and fund this month in February. 
Thanked the Encompass Network for their online events. Noted that there was 
still a lot of work to do and noted an extract from the Equality Pledge which 
stated ‘Wanted Cambridge to be a safe, welcoming and inclusive place’.  
 
Question  5 
 
From: Cllr Matthews  
To: Ex Cllr for Planning Policy and Open Spaces 
 
The planning department appears to be becoming stricter with the timelines 
available to councillors to “call-in” applications so that they can be decided by 
the planning committee. Are there clear guidelines for councillors on when to 
call-in applications to committee? Could councillors be given clarity in writing 
on how the planning department’s discretionary powers are now being applied 
to call-ins after the official deadlines? 
 
The Executive Councillor responded: 
Wasn’t aware that Officers were becoming stricter with timelines for councillors 
to ‘call in’ applications. The procedure for the ‘call in’ of an application to 
Planning Committee were set out in the Planning Committee Scheme of 

Page 38



Council Cnl/5 Monday, 1 March 2021 

 

 
 
 

5 

Delegation which was contined in the Council’s Constitution. This was 
reviewed as part of the Statement of Community Involvement which was 
updated in 2019. The procedure stated that within 21 days of the date of 
publication of the weekly list or within 14 days of any significant amendments 
any member including County Council members representing a city ward could 
request in writing that the application should be determined by the Planinng 
Committee. The request had to include the planning grounds on which the 
request was based. Timelines were strict as planning applications needed to 
be determined in accordance with statutory timescales.  
 
Question  6 
 
From: Cllr McGerty  
To: Ex Cllr for Transport and Community Safety 
 
Wednesday’s meeting of the Greater Cambridge Partnership Joint Assembly 
provided some interesting updates on plans to ease congestion and resulting 
pollution around the Cambridge Biomedical Campus, including progress on 
Cambridge South Station, the Cambridge Southeast Transport scheme and 
various walking and cycling projects. Would the leader of the council join me in 
welcoming these measures? 
 
The Executive Councillor responded: 
Transport around the two hospitals was key for patients, visitors and staff. 
Noted that further hospitals were due to be built on the site. Welcomed 
improvements to the biomedical campus especially walking, cycling and 
sustainable transport improvements.  
 
Question  7 
 
From: Cllr Baigent  
To: Leader 
 
What obligations do local political parties in Cambridge have to follow 
Government national safety guidance during the current lockdown on 
campaigning? 
 
The Executive Councillor responded: 
Everyone needed to follow the Covid rules, including political parties.  Subject 
to safety precautions, policitical parties were able to start campaigning from 
the 8 March 2021. 
 

Page 39



Council Cnl/6 Monday, 1 March 2021 

 

 
 
 

6 

Question  8 
 
From: Cllr Porrer  
To: Leader 
 
Would the Leader of the council agree that we need to continue to make 
representations to the ONS (Office of National Statistics) to ensure that the 
Census on 21st March 2021 fully accounts for those in our community who 
may not currently be resident in our city. In particular those in our EU and 
International student populations who may not have had accommodation in the 
city over the pandemic, and who won't otherwise be counted. 
 
The Executive Councillor responded: 
The census was vital and provided high quality data. There were problems 
with the 2011 census as this underestimated the number of students at Anglia 
Ruskin University and Cambridge University. Cambridge was a dynamic city 
with a lot of movement.  A significant number of students, researchers, 
academics, post graduates and people from the hospitality sector would not be 
in the city when the census took place. The risk was that the census severely 
underestimated Cambridge’s population and deprived the city of funding for 
health, schools, police and councils. Asked everyone to complete the census. 
Was disappointed that the Government did not follow the Scottish Government 
and hold the census in 2022.  
 
Question  9 
 
From: Cllr Hadley  
To: Ex Cllr for Planning Policy and Open Spaces 
 
Are there any interesting outcomes from Draft Chalk Stream Project Report? 
 
The Executive Councillor responded: 
There were lots of interesting outcomes from the report. For each stretch of the 
chalk streams, 9 features were assessed and ranked red, amber or green 
representing poor, moderate and good state. The emphasis was on the 
ecological quality of the streams. Only 1 stretch had a feature without a red 
designation, 2 stretches had 7, 12 stretches were designated red because they 
had invasive species. 11 stretches had weirs or barriers which disrupted the 
passage of fish. 8 stretches were designated red because the flow regime did 
not support biodiversity. Only 1 stretch was designated green for flow and that 
had a caveat that it had become more prone to low flows in the last 10 years. 
46 projects had been put forward for improvments as a result of the report 

Page 40



Council Cnl/7 Monday, 1 March 2021 

 

 
 
 

7 

totalling an estimated £300,000. Would be working with South Cambs District 
Council, the County Council and Water Resources East and their partners.  
 
Question  10 
 
From: Cllr Sheil  
To: Ex Cllr for Housing 
 
Can the Executive Councillor provide an update on the council’s work helping 
support rough sleepers during the pandemic into sustainable, longer-term 
housing placements? 
 
The Executive Councillor responded: 
Since the beginning of the pandemic 297 offers of accommodation had been 
made, this included repeated refusals and offers to previously evicted people.  
As at 19 February 2021, there were 37 rough sleepers in temporary 
accommodation. Since March 2020, 132 people had been moved into longer 
term accommodation or had found an alternative permanent solution. In terms 
of longer term accommodation options had agreed with landlords in the private 
sector for 10 properties for rent and had the council had agreed to pay the rent 
to these landlords. Funding for this had come from a grant from the Ministry of 
Housing Communities and Local Government. There were 4 modular homes at 
Dundee Close and 6 in Kings Hedges were due to go online in March. 6 further 
modular homes had been given permission at Barnes Close in Abbey.  
 
Question  11 
 
From: Cllr Thittala  
To: Leader 
 
Given the Covid 19 impact on the BAME community, what measures are in 
place to provide additional support to the community in Cambridge? 
 
The Executive Councillor responded: 
The Council and its partners had been in regular contact with different minority 
ethnic groups and organisations across the city. This included the mosque and 
the Ethnic Community Forum. The Council had focussed on hard to reach 
groups including those most at risk. Ethnicity was a big issue in the pandemic, 
welcomed the response of leaders in those communities. Noted a number of 
people in Cambridge did not use English as their first language.  
 
Question  12 

Page 41



Council Cnl/8 Monday, 1 March 2021 

 

 
 
 

8 

 
From: Cllr McQueen  
To: Ex Cllr for Communities 
 
What impact does the executive councillor think that universal credit has had 
on the people of Cambridge? 
 
The Executive Councillor responded: 
There was a 5-week delay before people were able to receive their money, 
which forced people into debt if they took out a loan. The default to 1 payment 
per household was problematic if people were victims of domestic abuse. The 
Council had done what it could to mitigate the negative impacts of Universal 
Credit including the provision of a dedicated universal credit support officer, a 
financial inclusion officer, retained the Council Tax Reduction Scheme and 
funded an outreach worker at the Citizens Advice Bureau. There were 1218 
claimants on the Council Tax Reduction Scheme in February 2020, this had 
doubled to 2458. A fair system was required which did not patronise or punish 
people.   
 
Details of the oral questions which were tabled but were not covered during 
the meeting can be found in the Information Pack via Agenda for Council on 
Monday, 1st March, 2021, 6.30 pm - Cambridge Council.  

21/10/CNL To consider the following notices of motion, notice of which 
has been given by: 

9a Councillor Bick: The future of Cambridge city centre 
Councillor Bick proposed and Councillor Porrer seconded the following motion: 
 
Council is aware of the large structural changes in the retail sector occurring 
during the pandemic, both reflecting and accelerating the trend towards online 
shopping, and that recent bankruptcies impact a significant proportion of retail 
space in Cambridge city centre; 
 
Council believes that this has the potential for profound impact not only on the 
precious environment in the centre itself but also on the economic and social 
contribution it makes to the whole of our city and beyond; that this represents a 
challenge beyond straight-forward bounce-back recovery; and that it is 
therefore timely and opportune to start a conversation to take stock of the 
centre's recent evolution and to re-imagine it for the future, using a 
placemaking approach in the public interest.  
 

Page 42

https://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=116&MId=4076&Ver=4
https://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=116&MId=4076&Ver=4


Council Cnl/9 Monday, 1 March 2021 

 

 
 
 

9 

It resolves that the council, as the city’s representative body and, with its key 
roles in planning, streets & open spaces and commercial property ownership, 
should lead this process, working with partners and stakeholders and involving 
the public: the broad aim of the exercise to maintain the city centre as a 
destination of vitality and jobs for local people, and of hospitality to its many 
visitors, in a way which complements its identity as historic university city 
encircled by public open spaces and residential areas and growing city 
quarters with neighbourhood centres of their own.  
 
In the process it urges consideration of: 

 means of facilitating a larger and much stronger range of local 
independent shops, including start-ups, making the centre a destination 
for retail that is genuinely differentiated from elsewhere and what is 
online  

 ensuring a secure future for a thriving, popular 7-day market which works 
for customers and traders  

 the changing nature of physical retail for ongoing high street businesses, 
in particular the key anchor presences   

 the demand for co-working spaces which builds on remote and flexible 
working trends outside the home, which seem likely to have a post 
pandemic legacy  

 the role that a larger arts and culture offering might play  

 the importance of conserving the city’s heritage  

 developing a pipeline of public realm schemes such as the market 
square, available to capitalise on the likely availability of government 
funding for city centre improvements  

 faster development of improved public transport access and cycle 
parking and completion of the traffic-free goal envisaged in our “Making 
space for People” process  

 the need for continued strong challenge to national planning policy 
proposals under which even more switches between use classes may 
become 'permitted development' and therefore beyond local planning 
policy and control.  

Council requests the Chief Executive to bring an initial report to the July 
meeting of Strategy & Resources Scrutiny Committee on how the council can 
most effectively start to take this matter forward.  

Page 43



Council Cnl/10 Monday, 1 March 2021 

 

 
 
 

10 

 
Councillor Davey proposed and Councillor Moore seconded the following 
amendment to motion (deleted text struck through and additional text 
underlined):  
 
Council is aware of the large structural changes in the retail sector occurring 
during the pandemic, both reflecting and accelerating the trend towards online 
shopping, and that recent bankruptcies impact a significant proportion of retail 
space in Cambridge city centre; 
 
The pandemic has had a major impact on theCouncil believes that this has the 
potential for profound impact not only on the precious environment in of the 
city centre itself but and also on the economic and social contribution it makes 
to the whole of our city and beyond;. Equally concerning has been the effect of 
COVID 19 on neighbourhood shopping areas such as Mill Rd, Cherry Hinton 
Rd, Arbury Ct., Chesterton Road and Chesterton High St. Council recognises 
the work undertaken to date to prepare for the future and thanks all City 
Council staff for their outstanding endeavours over the last 12 months. Council 
notes the structural changes in the retail sector that have occurred over the 
last twelve months and of the significant challenge still to come. Therefore, it is 
timely to take stock, and review and coordinate our ongoing activity with an 
eye to the future. 
that this represents a challenge beyond straight-forward bounce-back 
recovery; and that it is therefore timely and opportune to start a conversation to 
take stock of the centre's recent evolution and to re-imagine it for the future, 
using a placemaking approach in the public interest.  
 
We therefore welcome the proposed appointment of the Economic Recovery 
Officer as set out in the Budget Setting Report. It We also resolves that the 
council, as the city’s representative body and, with its key roles in planning, 
streets & open spaces and commercial property ownership, should continue to 
lead the process of preparing the City’s recovery, building on the effective work 
undertaken to date to respond to COVID19. This work should be undertaken in 
conjunction with the Cambridge Business Development (BID), established 
partnerships such as the GCP and the Combined Authority, working with 
stakeholders and actively involving the public.  
lead this process, working with partners and stakeholders and involving the 
public: the broad aim of the exercise to maintain the city centre as a 
destination of vitality and jobs for local people, and of hospitality to its many 
visitors, in a way which complements its identity as historic university city 
encircled by public open spaces and residential areas and growing city 
quarters with neighbourhood centres of their own.  

Page 44



Council Cnl/11 Monday, 1 March 2021 

 

 
 
 

11 

 
In the process it urges consideration of: The proposed Review will consider: 

 The work of the Economic Recovery Officer in facilitating the recovery of 
the city centre and neighbourhood shopping areas 

 means of facilitating offering a larger and much stronger broader range 
of local independent shops, including start-ups, making the centre a 
destination for retail and supporting the recovery of neighbourhood 
areas. that is genuinely differentiated from elsewhere and what is online 

 ensuring a secure future for a thriving, popular 7-day market which works 
for customers and traders 

 the changing nature of physical retail for ongoing high street businesses, 
in particular the key anchor presences  

 the demand for co-working spaces which builds on remote and flexible 
working trends outside the home, which seem likely to have a post 
pandemic legacy 

 the role that a larger of arts and culture and offering might play 

 the importance of conserving the city’s heritage 

 developing a pipeline of reviewing the public realm schemes such as the 
market square, available to currently proposed thereby capitalisinge on 
the likely possible availability of government funding for city centre 
improvements 

 faster the development of improved public transport access and cycle 
parking and completion of the traffic-free goal envisaged in our “Making 
space for People” process 

 the need for to continued strong to challenge to the national planning 
policy proposals under which even more regarding switches between 
use classes which may become 'permitted development' and therefore 
beyond local planning policy and control. 

Council requests the Chief Executive to bring a report to the July meeting of 
Strategy & Resources Scrutiny Committee on the ongoing work that the 
council has taken to respond to the needs of the City. an initial report to the 
July meeting of Strategy & Resources Scrutiny Committee on how the council 
can most effectively start to take this matter forward.  
 
On a show of hands the amendment was carried by 21 votes to 0. 
 

Page 45



Council Cnl/12 Monday, 1 March 2021 

 

 
 
 

12 

Resolved (by 21 votes to 0) that:  
 
The pandemic has had a major impact on the precious environment of the city 
centre itself and also on the economic and social contribution it makes to the 
whole of our city and beyond. Equally concerning has been the effect of 
COVID 19 on neighbourhood shopping areas such as Mill Rd, Cherry Hinton 
Rd, Arbury Ct., Chesterton Road and Chesterton High St. Council recognises 
the work undertaken to date to prepare for the future and thanks all City 
Council staff for their outstanding endeavours over the last 12 months. Council 
notes the structural changes in the retail sector that have occurred over the 
last twelve months and of the significant challenge still to come. Therefore, it is 
timely to take stock, and review and coordinate our ongoing activity with an 
eye to the future. 
 
We therefore welcome the proposed appointment of the Economic Recovery 
Officer as set out in the Budget Setting Report. We also resolve that the 
council, as the city’s representative body and, with its key roles in planning, 
streets & open spaces and commercial property ownership, should continue to 
lead the process of preparing the City’s recovery, building on the effective work 
undertaken to date to respond to COVID19. This work should be undertaken in 
conjunction with the Cambridge Business Development (BID), established 
partnerships such as the GCP and the Combined Authority, working with 
stakeholders and actively involving the public.  
 
The proposed Review will consider: 

 The work of the Economic Recovery Officer in facilitating the recovery of 
the city centre and neighbourhood shopping areas 

 means of offering a broader range of local independent shops, including 
start-ups, making the centre a destination for retail and supporting the 
recovery of neighbourhood areas.  

 ensuring a secure future for a thriving, popular 7-day market which works 
for customers and traders 

 the changing nature of physical retail for ongoing high street businesses, 
in particular the key anchor presences  

 the demand for co-working spaces which builds on remote and flexible 
working trends outside the home 

 the role of arts and culture and of conserving the city’s heritage  

Page 46



Council Cnl/13 Monday, 1 March 2021 

 

 
 
 

13 

 reviewing the public realm schemes currently proposed thereby 
capitalising on the possible availability of government funding for city 
centre improvements 

 the development of improved public transport access and cycle parking 
and completion of the traffic-free goal envisaged in our “Making space for 
People” process 

 to continue to challenge the national planning policy proposals regarding 
switches between use classes which may become 'permitted 
development' and therefore beyond local planning policy and control. 

Council requests the Chief Executive to bring a report to the July meeting of 
Strategy & Resources Scrutiny Committee on the ongoing work that the 
council has taken to respond to the needs of the City.  
 

9b Councillor Massey: Domestic Abuse in the Workplace 
Councillor Massey proposed and Councillor Davey seconded the following 
motion. 

As an organisation Cambridge City Council is committed to the Work to Stop 
Domestic Abuse campaign. Cambridge City Council fully recognise that for 
many people, the workplace is not just a vital source of independent income 
but can also be a source of support, which enables staff to be safe at home 
and at work. Much has been done by the Council to date, however the GMB 
has recently introduced a Charter which identifies good practice, and now is 
the time to review our practice using the Charter as a model.  

Everyone has a responsibility to end domestic abuse and as an organisation, 
Cambridge City Council will commit to the following actions:  

 Train managers how to best support staff members experiencing 
domestic abuse  

 Ensure that all staff have access to a domestic abuse in a workplace 
toolkit  

 Every staff member will have access to our workplace policy, and we will 
actively take steps to ensure it is adhered to.  

 Commit to reviewing our existing Policy by May 2021 and monitoring the 
amended policy on a regular basis  

 Display domestic abuse national and local support/advice in workplaces 
across the organisation  

Page 47



Council Cnl/14 Monday, 1 March 2021 

 

 
 
 

14 

 Sign up to GMB Union’s ‘Work to Stop Domestic Abuse’ Charter.  

 
Resolved (unanimously) to support the motion.  
 

9c Councillor Payne: Young Carers' Action Day 
 
As part of the debate the Executive Councillor asked to note the Council’s 
thanks to the following organisations for their support to young carers:  
Caring Together 
 
Pinpoint - siblings and carers in Cambridgeshire 
 
Big Sibs at Student Community Action 
 
Young Sibs, a national organisation 
 
Young Carers 
 
The Carers Trust 
 
Councillor Payne proposed and Councillor Chadwick seconded the following 
motion. 
 
Council commends the young people in Cambridge who selflessly provide care 
for others. 
 
Council notes that: 
 
• Recent research shows that one in five secondary school children may be a 
young carer. For many, their caring journey begins at a much younger age and 
can continue past 18. 

• Caring for someone can be isolating, worrying and stressful. For young 
carers, this can negatively impact on their experiences and outcomes in 
education, having a lasting effect on their life chances.  

• Each year, The Carers Trust has organised a Young Carers’ Action 
Awareness Day. In 2021 this will be renamed Young Carers’ Action Day and 
marked on March 16. 

Page 48



Council Cnl/15 Monday, 1 March 2021 

 

 
 
 

15 

• The purpose of the day is to raise public awareness of the challenges faced 
by young people and young adults because of their caring role, and to 
campaign for greater support for young carers to meet their needs. 
 
Council resolves to: 

 Promote Young Carers Action Day as widely as possible on an annual 
basis, where possible particularly to young carers and their families.  

 To use the Spring edition of ‘Cambridge Matters’ to promote awareness 
of the valuable work of Centre 33 in supporting Young Carers.  

 To work with local businesses and higher and further education providers 
around Cambridge to promote awareness of young carers and to 
encourage them to work with The Carers' Trust to promote opportunities 
and support for this group of people.  

 Write to the County Council to express our willingness to form a partner 
alongside them, in their All Age Carers Strategy, when it is reviewed in 
2022.    

Resolved (unanimously) to support the motion.  

 

21/11/CNL Written questions 
 
Members were asked to note the written questions and answers that had been 
published in the Information Pack via. 
 
 
 

The meeting ended at 9.22 pm 
 
 
 
 

CHAIR 
 

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 50



Abbey 

 Naomi Bennett 

 Hannah Copley 

 Haf Davies 

Arbury 

 Carina O’Reilly 

 Patrick Sheil 

 Mike Todd-Jones 

Castle 

 Sarah Baigent 

 Cheney Payne 

 Simon Smith 

Cherry Hinton 

 Mark Ashton 

 Robert Dryden 

 Russ McPherson 

Coleridge 

 Lewis Herbert 

 Rosy Moore 

 Anna Smith 

East Chesterton 

 Gerri Bird 

 Michael Bond 

 Carla McQueen 

King’s Hedges 

 Alex Collis 

 Jenny Gawthrope Wood 

 Martin Smart 

Page 51

Agenda Item 4



Market 

 Tim Bick 

 Alice Gilderdale 

 Katie Porrer 

Newnham 

 Markus Gehring 

 Lucy Nethsingha 

 Niamh Sweeney 

Petersfield 

 Mike Davey 

 Richard Robertson 

 Katie Thornburrow 

Queen Edith’s 

 Sam Davies 

 Daniel Lee 

 Jennifer Page-Croft 

Romsey 

 Dave Baigent 

 Mairéad Healy 

 Dinah Pounds 

Trumpington 

 Alan Cox 

 Ingrid Flaubert 

 Olaf Hauk 

West Chesterton 

 Jamie Dalzell 

 Mike Sargeant 

 Jocelynne Scutt 

Page 52



Civic Affairs  Monday 17 May 2021 

 

 
 
 

1 

CIVIC AFFAIRS  17 May 2021 
 5.30pm - 5.55 pm 
 
Present:  Councillors Davey (Vice-Chair), Dalzell, O’Reilly and Thornburrow  
 
 

FOR ADOPTION BY THE COUNCIL 

 
21/14/Civ – Civic Affairs: Nominations for Committees for the Municipal 
Year 2021/22 
 
The Committee considered a paper setting out the proposed Committee sizes 
and allocations by Group and the nominations received. The Committee 
considered the rules on political balance set out in the Local Government and 
Housing Act 1989 in developing the recommendations set out below.  
 
 
Resolved (unanimously) to: 
 
Recommend to Council to agree the number and size of committees and to 
note the nominations listed below (any updates will be provided in the 
Information Pack to Council on 26 May): 
 
Ordinary Committees 
 

Environment and Community Scrutiny Committee 10 (6 Labour + 3 
Lib Dem + 1 Green and Independent) 

H. Davies, Healy, S. Baigent, Sweeney, O’Reilly, Lab TBC  
 
Payne, Hauk, Page-Croft 
 
Copley 
 
Alternates – Sheil, Gilderdale, Bond, Lib Dem TBC 

 

Planning and Transport Scrutiny Committee 10 (6 Labour + 3 Lib 
Dem + 1 Green and Independent) 
 

D. Baigent, S. Smith, Scutt, Gawthrope Wood, Pounds, Lab TBC 
 
Bick, Porrer, Bond 
 

Page 53

Agenda Item 9a



Civic Affairs  Monday 17 May 2021 

 

 
 
 

2 

S. Davies 
 
Alternates – O’Reilly, Sargeant, Hauk, Lib Dem TBC 

 

Housing Scrutiny Committee 9 (6 Labour + 2 Lib Dem + 1 Green and 
Independent) 
 

Bird, Sheil, Gawthrope Wood, Robertson, Gilderdale, Pounds  
 
Dalzell, Lee 
 
Bennett 
 
Alternates – Sweeney, Lab TBC, Page-Croft, Lib Dem TBC 

 

Strategy and Resources Scrutiny Committee 6 (4 Labour + 2 Lib Dem) 

Robertson, H. Davies, Healy, S. Smith 
 
Bick, Dalzell 
 
Alternates – O’Reilly, Scutt, Payne, Lib Dem TBC 

 

Civic Affairs Committee 6 (4 Labour + 2 Lib Dem) 
 

Sargeant, Davey, O’Reilly, Dryden 
 
Gehring, Flaubert 
 
Alternate – Moore, Dalzell 

 

Employment (Senior Officer) Committee 6 (4 Labour +2 Lib Dem)  
 

Herbert, Moore, S. Baigent, Collis 
 
Bick, Porrer 
 
Alternates: A. Smith 
 

 

Licensing Committee 10 (6 Labour + 3 Lib Dem + 1 Green and 
Independent) 
 

Page 54



Civic Affairs  Monday 17 May 2021 

 

 
 
 

3 

Bird, McPherson, McQueen, Dryden, Moore, Collis 
 
Page-Croft, Cox, Bond 
 
Bennett 
 
Alternates – Scutt, Flaubert 

 

Planning Committee 7 (5 Labour+ 2 Lib Dem)  

Smart, D. Baigent, Thornburrow, Gawthrope Wood, Dryden 
 
Porrer, Flaubert 
 
Alternates – Herbert, McQueen, Page-Croft 

 

Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Combined Authority - 1 seat 

Herbert 
 
Alternate - Smart  

 

Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Combined Authority Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee 2 Labour  
 

Davey, D. Baigent 
 
Alternates – Moore 

 
 

Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Audit and Governance Committee 
1 Labour + one alternate  
 

Sargeant 
 
Alternate – Moore  

 

Greater Cambridge Partnership Joint Assembly 3 (2 Labour + 1 Lib 
Dem) 
 

S. Smith, Moore, Bick 
 
 
 

Page 55



Civic Affairs  Monday 17 May 2021 

 

 
 
 

4 

 

Joint Development Control Committee - Cambridge Fringes 6 (4 
Labour+ 2 Lib Dem)  
 

Smart, D. Baigent, S. Smith, Thornburrow 
 
Porrer, Page-Croft 
 
Alternates – Scutt, Gawthrope Wood, Flaubert, Bond 

Page 56



Civic Affairs  Monday 17 May 2021 

 

 
 
 

1 

CIVIC AFFAIRS  17 May 2021 
 5.30pm - 5.55 pm 
 
Present:  Councillors Davey (Vice-Chair), Dalzell, O’Reilly and Thornburrow  
 
 

FOR ADOPTION BY THE COUNCIL 

 
21/15/Civ – Civic Affairs: Nominations for Chairs and Vice Chairs for the 
Municipal Year 2021/22 
 
The Committee received nominations for Chairs and Vice Chairs of Scrutiny 
and Regulatory Committees.  
 
Resolved (unanimously) to: 
 

i. Agree the nominations for Chairs and Vice Chairs as below: 
 

 Chair Vice Chair 
Environment and 
Community Services 

H. Davies Healy 

Planning and 
Transport  

D. Baigent S. Smith 

Housing Bird Sheil 
(nb. Tenant/Leaseholder is 
Chair of Part 1 of the meeting) 

Strategy & Resources Robertson H. Davies 

Civic Affairs Sargeant Davey 

Licensing Bird McPherson 

Planning Smart D. Baigent 

JDCC Smart as Vice Chair (South Cambridgeshire 
District Council has the Chair this year) 

 

Page 57

Agenda Item 9b



This page is intentionally left blank



CAMBRIDGE CITY COUNCIL 
 

Officer Urgent Decision - Record 
 

Non-Councillor Appointment to the Conservators of the River Cam  
 

 

Decision(s) taken: To agree a Non-Councillor Appointment to the 
Conservators of the River Cam 

Decision of: Strategic Director 2 (Suzanne Hemmingway)  

Date of decision:
  

26 April 2021   

Matter for 
Decision:  

To appoint Anthony Wieser to the Non-Councillor post to 
the Conservators of the River Cam.  

Any alternative 
options 
considered and 
rejected: 

None  

Reason(s) for the 
decision including 
any background 
papers 
considered: 

This post become available due to a resignation of one of 
the conservators during their three-year appointment 
which started in January 2019. Therefore, this post will be 
filled up to the end of December 2021.  
An Urgent Decision under part 3 section 9, para 2 was 
necessary as there are no meetings of the Council to 
approve the recommendation of the selection panel in 
order for the successful candidate to attend the April 
meeting of the Conservators of the River Cam.    

Conflicts of 
interest and 
dispensations 
granted by the 
Chief Executive: 

 
 
None. 

Other Comments: The Executive Councillor for Planning Policy and Open 
Spaces, the Chair of the Planning and Transport 
Committee  and spokesperson for Open Spaces were all 
consulted and supported the proposed decision. 

Reference:  2021/OfficerUrgent/P&T /10 
 

Contact for further 
information: 

Suzanne Hemingway, 01223 457000  

Page 59

Agenda Item 15a



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 25 February and 1 March 2021
	Minutes
	Minutes Public Pack, 01/03/2021 Council
	Minutes


	4 To note the Returning Officer's Report that the following have been elected to the office of Councillor
	9a Civic Affairs: Nominations for Committees for the Municipal Year 2021/22
	9b Civic Affairs: Nominations for Chairs and Vice-Chairs Municipal 2021/22
	15a Officer Urgent Decision: Non-Councillor appointment to Conservators of the River Cam

